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To,

The Board of Directors,

Satin Finserv Limited,

Plot no. 492, Wing-4B, Udyog Vihar, Phase-lil,
Gurugram, Haryana - 122016

Sub: Master Direction - Non Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

We, Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, have audited the financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (the “Company”) for
the period ended March 31, 2025 and have issued our report dated April 25, 2025.

Based on the audited financial statements of the Company referred to above and information | explanations and
representations received from the management, we confirm the following particulars:

(A) In the case of all Non-Banking Financial Companies

1. The company has obtained a Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India under section 45-1A of
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

2. The company is entitled to continue to hold such CoR in terms of its Principal Business Criteria (Financial
asset/income pattern) as on March 31, 2025.

3. The company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in Master Direction — Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and amendments thereon from
time to time.

(B) In the case of a non-banking financial companies accepting/holding public deposits

Being a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company, para (B) of Chapter Il of Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

(€) In the case of a non-banking financial company not accepting public deposits
We further confirm that:
1. The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for non-acceptance of any public deposits dated April 22, 2024.

2. As per our verification of books of accounts and further explanation and information produced before us, we
confirm that the Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

3. The company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting standards, asset
classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of Master D|| ection — Reserve
Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023. X
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4. The Capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to the RBI in form DNBS-03, has been correctly
arrived at and is in compliance with the minimum CRAR prescribed. The company has furnished the return within the
stipulated period.

5. On the basis of our verification and further explanation and information as produced before us, we confirm that
the Company has been registered with Reserve Bank of India under section 45-1A under the category - Loan Company.
Accordingly, classification as NBFC Micro Finance Institutions (MFI) as defined in the Master Direction — Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 is not applicable to the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

(D) In the case of a company engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution not required to hold CoR
subject to certain conditions

Para (D) of Chapter Il of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

This certificate is addressed to and provided to Board of Directors of the Company, in terms of Chapter Il of Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, solely for the purpose
of enabling it to comply with the requirement of the Master Directions which inter alia requires it to submit the
certificate by the Statutory Auditors to Board of Directors and should not be used, referred to of distributed for any
other purposes without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability if it is to be
used for other than its intended purpose without our prior written consent.

Place of Signature: Delhi | For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Dated: April 25, 2025 Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N

Rajeev Bhatia
Partner
M. No. 089018

UDIN -25084 ol £ BMOYYQ32K5
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Satin Finserv Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in [ndia including Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information but does not include the financial statements and our
Auditors’ Report thereon.

Our opinion on Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
P '\;:_.l_l"..l__'.: N
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In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),
profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepr:_:;:,s_g\m_t:-q_,t?py1s, or the override of internal control.
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(b) Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with respect to Financial Statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief

were necessaty:for the purpose of our audit.
AN 4

\C5
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2025 and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements-

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) the Company did not have any pending litigations which impacted its financial position as at March 31,
2025;

(ii) the Company did not havé any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2025;

iii) there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025;

(iv)  a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
1A & 4 material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
\\/ antity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing

N\
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or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement

As per the information and records provided to us by the company, no dividend has been declared or
paid during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which displays the dates
of creation and authorisation of the transaction keeping the system date as a base and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with
and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N

a)/
RajeexBhatia
Partner
Membership No.: 089018

UDIN - 2505?<%ql8 BMOVYYPY2RDL

Place:
Date: April 25,2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of
even date of Satin Finserv Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025)

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use assets and Intangible Assets

a)

b)

d)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets on the basis of
available information.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets of the Company were physically verified
as at the year-end by the management, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable property (other than properties where
the company is the lessee and lease agreements are duly executed in the favor of lessee) under Property,
plant and equipment in its name as on March 31, 2025 and during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(i) (c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment (including right-of-use assets)
and intangible assets during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(i) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Thus, paragraph 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ii) Inventories & Working Capital Limit

2)

e

The Company is a service company. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph
3(if) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

_According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the

s sompany does not have a working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees, sanctioned from any bank or

\‘flnanaal institution on the basis of security of current assets during the year and as on March 31, 2025.
Hence, the reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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(iii) Loans granted by company

a) The Company is registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non-Banking

Financial Company (NBFC). Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, we are
of the opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans in nature of loans and advances, during the
year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest

) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest have generally been
regular as per stipulation. Since the Company is an NBFC, and considering the significant volume of
transactions with number of borrowers, furnishing the number of cases of default is practically not feasible.

d) In respect of loans granted by the company, the details of total amount overdue above 9o days are as
follows:
No. of cases Principal Amount | Interest Overdue | Total Overdue (in | Remarks
Overdue (in Rs.) | (inRs.) Rs.) e
1929* 7,51,72,712.00 3,84,16,192.00 11,35,88,904.00 | NIL

*excluding restructured cases
The company is taking reasonable steps for the recovery of principal and interest overdue amount.

e) The Company is registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non-Banking

Financial Company (NBFC). Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

f) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f)

is not applicable.

(iv) Compliance of Section 185 and 186 of The Act

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of loans granted, to the extent applicable.

(v) Acceptance of Deposits

—According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has neither
'-'a'q'(-;_e_pted any deposits from the public nor any deposits are outstanding during the year. There are no

\1:".
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deemed deposits under the provisions of the Act and rules thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) Maintenance of Cost records

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the requirement of
maintenance of cost records pursuant to Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by
the Central Government in terms of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the
company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) Payment of Applicable Taxes

a)

'b)

According to the information and explanations provided to us and the records of the company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
income-tax, goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional taxes and
other material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities in India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income-tax, service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional taxes and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by
us, during the period under audit, there are no dues of income tax or any other applicable statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) Undisclosed income

According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) Dues to a Financial Institution or bank or debenture holder

a)

b)

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of Interest thereon
to any lender and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable

Based on the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not been declared willful defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the

Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
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According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, funds
raised on short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) Initial Public Offer

a)

b)

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, during
the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xi) Fraud by the Company or on the Company

a)

b)

)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, no
report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company
during the year. hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(xii) Nidhi Company

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) Related Party Transactions

N

7

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as
required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of SATIN FINSERV LIMITED for FY 2024-25 Page 4 of 6



Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

201, 203, 2nd Floor,

A-20, Indraprastha Bhawan,

Dr. Mukherjee Nagar

Commercial Complex, Delhi-110009
9810057854, 9990511249, 9711842888
info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com

(xiv) Internal Audit

a)

b)

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, in

our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) Non - Cash Transactions

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) Registration with RBI

a)

b)

d)

The Company was required to be registered under Section 45lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of
1934) as an NBFC and has been registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a
Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC).

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India, accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

As per the information and explanation provided to us by the company, there is not more than one CIC in
the group (in accordance with the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

(xvii) Cash Losses

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Company has not incurred any Cash Losses during the year and the immediately preceding financial year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xviii) Resignation of Statutory Auditor

Therg has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year. Hence the reporting

f/

: -I_' Y_.ldet;{dause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.
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xix) Material Uncertainty about the Company’s Capability to discharge its liabilities
pany P y g

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors’ and Management’s plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) Corporate Social Responsibility

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are applicable on the company. However, considering average profit
for last 3 years, amount required to be spent under CSR is nil. Accordingly, there are no unspent amounts
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing or other than ongoing projects requiring a
transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5)
of section 135 of the said Act. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the order is not
applicable of the company.

(xxi) Qualification or Adverse Remarks by the respective auditors

Since the company is not required to prepare‘Consolidated Financial Statements, the reporting under this
clause is not applicable to the company.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N

/

i

RajegV Bhatia

Partner

Membership No.: 089018"
UDIN- 250890l ¥BMOYYP Y232,

Place: Delhi
Date: April 25,2025
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Satin Finserv Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (‘/IFCoFR’)
of the Company as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAlI and deemed to be prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCOFR, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
Dased on Lhe assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
6. A company’s IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s IFCoFR include those policies and procedures that:
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and Directors of the
Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the IFCOFR to future periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company-has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N

ulv/ ’/
RajeeyBhatia |
Partner '
Membership No.: 089018

UDIN- 250890|8BM OYYpy232_

Place: Delhi

Date: April 25,2025
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in X in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulats Notes ot
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 6,005.84 5,485.86
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5 2,692,99 3,959.69
Trade receivables 6 17.72 337.64
Loans 7 50,819.95 32,192.22
Other financial assets 8 1,187.52 896.35
60,724.02 42,871.76
Non Financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 9 1,096.52 923.73
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 937.09 1,090.99
Property, Plant and Equipment 11 602.41 331.98
Intangible assets 12 5.38 2.36
Capital Works-in-Progress 12A - 9.21
Other non financial assets 13 829.78 575.09
347118 2,933.36
TOTAL 64,195.20 45,805.12
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Trade payables 14
total outstanding dues of MSMEs 43.17 13.78
total outstanding dues of creditors other than NSMEs 199.94 113.28
Debt securities 15 8,974.09 1,952.13
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 34,885.46 23,459.39
Other financial liabilities 17 301.14 243.12
44,403.80 25,781.70
Non Financial Liabilities
Provisions 18 660.61 1,636.22
Other non-financial liabilities 19 106.05 108.15
766.66 1,744.37
EQUITY
Equity share capital 20 15,755.79 15,755.79
Other equity 21 3,268.95 2,523.26
19,024.74 18,279,05
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 64,195.20 45,805.12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our review report of even date attached

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 021776N

Partnery \: \

M.No. 089018 len)

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Satin Finserv Limited

L

Harvinder Pal Singh
3754
A Director

<

Chief Executive Officer
Place : Gurugram

Arjyn Bansal

b

Chbel Flnancial Officer
Place : Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2025

22~

)

indeep Kumar Mehta
DIN: 00840544

Place : Gurugram

/gx a f\A—Fﬂl‘s M
—
Sangam Jaiswal

Mem No: A44284

Company Secretary & CCO
Place : Gurugram




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

. For the period ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations
Interest income 22 10,245.59 6,547.54)
Fees and commission income 23 2,129.04 5,289.31
Net gain on fair value changes 24 96.17 64.23
Total revenue from operations 12,470.80 11,901.04
Other income ' 25 190.91 239.47
Total income ) 12,661.71 12,140.51
Expenses:
Finance costs 26 4,007.32 2,643.63
Impairment on financial instruments 27 1,328.66 358.23
Employee benefits expense 28 4,7117.02 5,755.34
Depreciation and amortization expense 29 187.89 156.44
Other expenses 30 1,362.52 2,523.35
Total expenses 11,603.41 11,436.99
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax 1,058.30 703.52
Exceptional items . N
Profit / (loss) before tax 1,058.30 703.52

Prior period items
Tax expense

Current tax 159.27 150.41
Mat credit utilization/ (entitlement) (net) 34.38 (150.41)
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) 119.37 184.21
Barlier years tax - 4.53
Total tax expense 313.02 188.75
Nect profit/ (loss).for the period 745.28 514.77

Other comprehensive income
Item that will not t¢ be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 0.56 (4.49)
Income tax relating to these items . (0.16) 1.25
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the period 0.41 (3.24)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 745.69 511.53

Earnings per share (basic and diluted) (in Rs.)

Basic (Rs.) 0.47 0.36
0.36

Diluted (Rs.) 0.47

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our review report of even date attached

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of )
Chartered Accountants Satin Finserv Limited
Firm's Registration No.: 021776N

Harvinder Pal Singh
IDIN: 00333754 M N: 00840544
Dircctor

Place : Gurugram

a " 7 M.FH-"A’
Sangam Jaiswal

Mem No: A44284
Chief Executive Officer Company Secretary & CCO
Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram

Rayj
Parine!
ML.No, OB B

¢ Bhatin

Arjun Bansal
WA

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Gurugram Place : Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2025 Date: April 25, 2025



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Cash fTow statement for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts in  in lakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

Pt For the period ended For the period ended

The accompanying notcs are an integeal pact of the financial statements

As per our review report of even date atiached

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firmis Registration No.; 021776N

Partner T
M.No. 089018 |

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Satin Finserv Limited

2 .

Harvinder Pab8ingh

Chief Executive Officer
Place : Gurugram

Arjn Bansal
g‘\&
Chief Finnncial Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2025

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING AGTIVITIES
Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,058.30 703.52
Adjustments for:
Provision for expected credit losses 665.10 92.15
Provisiun for employec bencfits 2593 (57.98)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 94.73 B1.26
Depreciation of ROU assets 93.16 75.18
Loss/(gain) on disposal of tangible assets (4.59) (14.67)
Interest paid on borrowings 3,956.30 2,710.16
Operating Profit/(loss) Before Working Capital Changes 5,888.93 3,589.62
Chinges in worling capital;
Adji for (i )/ decreast in operating assets:
Trade reccivables 319.92 (39.31)
Other bank balances 1,266.70 (798.25)
Financial Assets (19,292.83) (10,158.04)
Other financial asscts (291.17) {206.27)
Other non financial assets (254.68) (235.05)
Adj for (i c)/ decrease in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 116.05 (162.97)
Other financial liabilities 58.02 (28.37)
Other non financial liabilitics (2.10) 048
Provisions (1,000.98) 162.14
Movement in operating assets and linbilities (19,081.07) (11,465.64)
Cash generated from operations (13,192 14) (7,870.02)
Less: Income tax refund / (paid) (net) (332.06) (81.89)
Net cash flow/(used) in operating activities (A) (13,524.20) (1,957.91)
. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment « (545.61) (288.07)
Sale of propecty, plant and equipment 98.06 107.26
lavestment in Pass through Certificates -
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (447.55) (180.81)
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuc of cquity share capital (net of issuc expenses) 4,000.00
Repayment of borrowings (15,644.68) (15,340.66)
Procecds from borrowings 33,960.12 23,747.62
Interest paid on borrowings (3,956.30) (2,710.16)
Payment of lease liabilities 132,59 49.31
Net cash flow [rom financing activitics <€) 1449175 9,746.11
Net (Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 519,98 1,607.39
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,485,86 3,878.47
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,005.84 5,485.86
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash 519.98 1,607 39
flow statement

Sundeep Kumar Mchta
1IN: 00840544
Director

/&M -] rﬂ{ oML
_—-""
Sangam Jaiswal °
AMem No: Ad44281

Company Secretary & CCO
Place : Gurugram
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in T in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

46 Phere is 1o cases of teansactions with the companics struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

47 Trade Receivables Ageing sohedulo

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due dare of payment - Mareh 31' 2025
- Mot due Lews than 6 months [t monthy - 1 yeur jiy_c__nn;___ﬂgm____ ars [Towl |
{0 Undisputed Teaile veeivabiiy — cosideriad pood - 1230 523 0.19 - 17,72
(i) Undispuied ‘I'eade Receivables = which have significant increase in
credit rk
i) Unelimputed Tride Recilvables — aredit fguired
() Dhisputed Trade Receivables— copisidiere g
(¥) Disputed "I'rade Receivables - which have significant increase 1
readit rnk
i} Dhispured] Trde Recrivablis — erediy e ] ]
Trade Reccivabiles ngeli sehedule
Particulars Quistanding for following perods from due date of payment- March 31 2074
Not due Less than 6 months |6 mantlie - 1 year 1-2 yours 2-3 yoars Mo%!\-_ml_q
{0 Undisputied Ty peeeivalli — conmdereil pood 32289 217 PN K] 1.47 W04
(1) Undisputed "I'rade Receivables — which have significant increase in
wredin rak
() Unnefingwiteel "Vraclee Heweieubles — credin impaived
(v Ehpuited Ty Reestyal s congidered el
(V) Disputed Trade Receivables —which have significant increase 1n
credit nsk
Lon Dispnatod Teaelie Weceivaliles = credit impaired
47A - Unbilled fevenue wpein schedule 2
Particulars Ouistandin, eripds from due date of privment- March 31 2024 | _-]
Not due Less thun 6 months |6 monils - Lyear |12 yoars 2-3 years More than 3 yeurs "l‘uml [
1) Undigpured Unbilled rovere — conmdetid good ] . l 154 | 5 L58

Linbilled revene 3 eing schedule

Particulars Uumandiux for following poriods from due date of payment- Murch 3] 2023
Mot due ll.nuu thim 6 monthy |6 months - 1 year 12 yeurs
3} Uniclispuied Unbilled revenue —cainidired i | 12000 -

48  Additional inf ion

to Ministry of Corporate Affairs nolification dated March 24, 2021 with respect to amendments in Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013

(i) There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Iicnami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) and, rules madc
thereunder. )

(i) The company is not a wilful defaulter as declmed by any bank or financial Instittion or any other lender.

(iii) There are no ¢l ac satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies '(ROC) beyond the statutory period.

(iv) "The compariy |y cotaplied with the number f layers prescribed under clase (87) of scction 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

(v) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered

ot disclosed as income during thie year in the tax assessments undr the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such
a3, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(vi) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year,

Duiring the year, no funeds (which are materal cither Mdiviehuidly orin the apggegate) have beer advanced o loaned or wvested (eithier froim borriwed funds or share premium o any ather sotrces or kind of funds) by
e Catping 1 o in Ay ather popin o entity, incliieling forejgn entity (] dinrniss™), withy the g ling, whother recorded in wting e Gtheewise, that the Intermediney shall, whether, directly or indircetly

kenel e invent in other [rersais o antities idenified in iy manner whatsoever by uron biehalf of the Compuny (“Ultinite Beneficuries™) or frowide any guarantee, security or the like on belialf of the Ultimare
Vi) Henufio

Latdring the yhan, ng s (which arg mareril vither ndividially ae in the apregate) have been received by
unglurs wnding, whether rec
(viii) bk

¥ the Company fram any [res3amn or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Partics”), with the
dn writing or othorwise, thit the Company shall, whether, directly or indireetly, lendd or iwest in orher porsons or entities identified in :iny manner whatsoever by or on
of the Tunding Parry (“Ultnare Bencfickiries™) or provide any meraniee, security ok the like on behalf of the Ulnimate Benofenrien.

19 Provious yeie Viguees have liegn regroupeddy e clusified wherever fecesany o mike it campacible with the figure presented for the year ended 31st March 2025.

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our review report of even date attached

For Rajeev Bhatin & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of /7
Chartered Accountants Satin Finserv Limited

(iron's Regintration No.: 021776N -2 -~

arvinder Pal Singh 5 vp Kumar Mehta
N: 00333754 \ DIN: 00840544

coloe Director

ce : Gurugram Place : Gurugram

ZQ....,.-{ o4
A Jalswal "TT <

Mem No: A44284

Chiefl Executive Officer
Place : Gurugram

Company Secretary & CCO
Place : Gurugram

ArjugpBanuat

T
Chber Fidancial Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2025 Date: Aprit 25, 2025

Place: Gurugram
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Satin Finserv Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and othet explanatory information for the period ended
March 31, 2025

Company Overview / Corpotate Information

Satin Finserv Limited (‘the Company’) is a public limited company and incorporated on August 10, 2018, under the
provisions of Companies Act. The Company is a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-
ND') and is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC') with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) in
January 09, 2019. The main objective of the Company to carry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Company
and to undertake business relating to financing. The Company is also engaged in the business of “Business
Correspondent” activity with various Banks and NBFCs. As per Reserve Bank of India (RBI), scope of activity of
Business Correspondent services includes Identification of Borrowers, collection and preliminary processing of loan
applications including verification of primary information, processing and submission of applications to banks,
promoting, nurturing and monitoring of Self Help Groups/Joint Liability Groups, post-sanction monitoring, follow-
up for recovery, disbursal of small value credit and recovery of principal/collection of intetest. The Company is
domiciled in India and its registered office & corporate office is situated at 4th Floor, B-Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog
Vihar, Phase-III, Gurugram, Haryana - 122016.

Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

These Ind AS financial statements (“the Financial Statements™) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’) under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are the financial statements, which has been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS and other applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI).

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on April 25, 2025.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values as explained
in relevant accounting policies.

Summary of material accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement. bases
summarised as below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements, except where the
Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred and the cost of item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives and residual value)
Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written-down method over the useful life
of the assets as prescribed under Part ‘C’ of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset class ) Useful life
Office equipment ' 5 years
Computer and accessories — end user devices 3 years

Computer and accessories — network equipment | 6 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Plant and machinery 6 - 15 years

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or dll the date the asset
is sold or disposed.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and advances paid to
acquire property, plant and equipment. Assets which are not ready to intended use are also shown under capital work-
in-progress.

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent measurement (amortisation)

Intangible assets are amortised over a petiod of 3 years from the date when the assets are available for use. The
estimated useful life (amortisation period) of the intangible assets is arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption
of economic benefits and is reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation period is revised to reflect
the changed pattern, if any.

Revenue recognition

Interest, administration and other charges (for loans)

Interest, administration and other charges received are recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method along with the consideration of transaction cost directly attributable to the creation of financial instrument
being Loan Asset. Additional interest/overdue interest/penal charges are recognised only when it is reasonable certain
that the ultimate collection will be made.

Commission income
Income from business correspondent services is recognised as and when the services are rendere Q" ; erms
nd conditions of the contract.
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Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised at the time when the right to receive is established by the reporting date.

Other Charges related to Operation

The Company collect other charges i.e. login fee, documentation charges, overdue interest, Cheque bounce charges,
prepayment charges, conversion charges, document retrieval charges, Foreclosure charges etc from all the borrowers
based on event, and recognise this income on collection basis.

Miscellaneons income
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realization/collection.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and/or construction of a qualifying asset, are capitalized during
the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset
is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are
charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred basis the effective interest rate method.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the
ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance
with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit
becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of
MAT credit entitlement is written down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid
during the specified period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised
tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable
income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-
taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits including salaries, short term compensated absences (such as a paid annual leave) where

the absences are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which j
e relafed service, profit sharing and bonuses payable within twelve months after the end of »
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employees render the related services and non-monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured
on an undiscounted basis.

Post-employment benefit plans ate classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as
under:

Defined contribution plans

The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund, pension fund and employees state insurance
scheme. The contribution made by the Company in respect of these plans aré charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Where
in the employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to employee's length of service and last drawn salary.
Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to
the employee’s length of service and final salary. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company,
even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. The liability recognised in the statement
of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the
repotrting date less the fair value of plan assets. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of
independent actuaties. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in
other comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long-
term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to avail after
one year from the Balance Sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from past
expetience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which such
gains or losses are determined.

Share based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Satin Creditcare Network Limited (Parent
Company’) Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs). The employee benefits expense is measured using the fair value
of the employee stock options and is recognised over vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The
vesting period is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. On the exercise of the
employee stock options, the employees of the Company will be allotted Parent Company’s equity shares.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

For impaitment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
p : g g p grouped tog

generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely

independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is

based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.
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An impairment loss is recognised if the cartying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets
of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a prorata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company
reviews at reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or rio longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Impairment of financial assets

Loan assets

The Company follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition
as summarised below:

e A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in ‘Stage 1’ and has its credit
risk continuously monitored by the Company i.e. the default in repayment is within the range of 0 to 30 days.

e If a significant increase in credit risk (‘SICR’) since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is
moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired i.e. the default in repayment is within the range
of 31 to 90 days.

® If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3’ i.e. the default
in repayment is more than 90 days.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage
2 and Stage 3 loan assets ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given
Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation
(as per “Definition of default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over
the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

Loss Given Default (LGD) — LGD represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted
exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and preference of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit support.

Exposute at Default (EAD) — EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of
default. For a revolving commitment, the Company includes the current drawn balance plus any further amount that
1s expected to be drawn up to the cutrent contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

Forward-looking economic information (including management overlay) is included in determining the 12-month and
lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an
ongoing basis.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit tisk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over
of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occursi
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asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that
is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk
on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand (including imprest), demand deposits and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available informaton.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an
assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain
that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the
termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the company’s operations taking into account
the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and
future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relating to the
existing lease contracts.

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for building for office premises. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(1) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and

(iif)the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the exclusive options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the leaseHabi justed




Satin Finserv Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended
March 31, 2025 .

lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.
The Company as a lessor

The company does not have any leases as a lessor.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standatd to all lease contracts
existing on April 1, 2019 using the prospective method and has recorded the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and corresponding right of use asset at the same value.
Due to the prospective method applied, the comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 will continue
to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our financial statements for year ended March 31,
2019.

Leases in which the lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the
lessee are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straight line basis
except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the
time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

¢ DPossible obligations which will be confirmed only by futute events not wholly within the control of the Company
ot

® DPresent obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related
asset is disclosed.

m) Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to contractual

measurement of financial assets and financial labilities is described below.



Satin Finserv Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended
March 31, 2025

Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measurement

i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

®  The asset is leld within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in mutual funds — Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and
loss (FVTPL).

Tmpairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing
component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows
other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The
amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that
is required to be recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not
retained control, it shall also derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights
and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Toss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Earnings per shate

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus
issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (interest and other finance cost
associated) for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment repotting

The Company identifies segment basis the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments
are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts
are regularly by the executive management (‘chief operating decision maker) in deciding how to allocate resources
and in assessing performance. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are line with the accounting
policies of the Company. Segrnent.revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship with the operating activities of the segment.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly identified as the chief operating decision maker.
Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, which are common to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to
segments on a reasonable basis, have been treated as "unallocated revenues/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities", as the case
may be.

Share issue expenses

All the expenses pertaining to issue of equity share capital are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account to the
extent any balance is available for utilisation in securities premium account.

Guarantee contracts

First loss default guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse
the bank and financial institution for a loss, it incurs because a specified customer fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a loan contracts or due to negligence or deficiency of service or non-observance, by
the Company, of stipulations and conditions contained in the agreement with respective business partners. Such
guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions, for whom the Company acts as ‘Business Correspondent’.
On each reporting date, liabilities against these guarantee contracts are measured and recognised in books as per the

terms of agreements and any subsequent mutual consent with respective business partners.

agreements with respective business partners.




Satin Finserv Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended
March 31, 2025

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Significant management judeenents

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of
assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable
amount of the assets.

Expected credit loss (‘ECL’) - The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at
amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behaviour (e.g. likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes significant
judgements with regard to the following while assessing expected credit loss:

® Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

® Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and

®  Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual
future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying

assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

. (This space has been intentionally left blank)




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in X in lakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

11 Property, plant and equipment

12

Balance as at March 31, 2025

Gross Block Computer Office Furniture & Vehicle  Right of use Total
cquipment Equipment Fixtures asset

Balance as at March 31, 2023 372.48 79.50 121.55 27.52 458.03 1,059.08
Aquired through business - =
Additions 39.47 15.15 23.84 20.49 179.16 278.10
Disposals (80.45) (21.26) (33.94) (27.52) {103.75) (275.92)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 322.50 73.39 11145 20.49 533.44 1,061.26
Additions 38.77 71.07 139.01 23.50 276.16 549.11
Disposals (BH.72) (11.53) (21.23) (20.44) (386.35) (528.31)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 272.55 132.93 229.83 23.50 423.25 1,082.06
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2023 314.53 60.96 70.74 9.91 303.82 759.97
Depreciation charge for the ycar 46.55 11.54 17.00 3.08 75.18 153.34
Adjustment on account of disposals (81.17) (18.6H) (23.03) (1(.22) (50.93) (154.04)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 279.91 53.82 64.71 2.77 328.07 729.28
Depreciation charge for the period 28.38 22.44 29.03 1217 93.16 185.19
Adjustment on account of disposals (82.24) (2.76) {15.90) (H.30) [A1H63) (434.83)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 226.05 66.50 77.84 6.64 102.60 479.65
Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2024 42.59 19.57 46.74 17.72 205,37 331.98
Balancc as at March 31, 2025 46.50 66.43 151.99 16.86 320.65 602.41
Intangible assets
Gross Block Software* Total
Balance as at March 31, 2023 30.32 30.32
Aquired through business
combination
Additions 0.76 0.76
Adjustments during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 31.08 31.08
Additions 5.72 5.72
Disposals ; s
Balance as at March 31, 2025 36.80 36.80
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2023 25.62 25.62
Aquired through business
combination
Depreciation charge 3.10 3.10
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 28.72 28.72
Depreciation charge 2.70 2.70
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 31.42 31.42
Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2.36 2.36
Balance as at March 31, 2025 5.38 5.38
* Operating system for computers.

12A Capital Works-in-Progress
Particulars CWIP Total
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - -
Addition 9.21 9.21
Disposals “ -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 9.21 9.21
Addition - -
Disposals (9.21) (4.21)



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in  in lakbs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars - ok 2%
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Walinee with banks in current accounts 2,407.85 1,241.69
Cash in hand 35224 600.78
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 3.245.75 3,643.39
Total of cash and cash equivalonts 6,005.84 5.485.86
Note: There ace no repatriation restrictions with respect to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting year and comparative years.
Note 5:Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
“Term deposits for remaining miaturity of 3 months or less
Term deposits with remaining maturity more than 3 mouths but less than 12 months 2m
Term deposits having remaining maturity of more than 1 year
Balante with banks and financial institutions to the extent held as margin moncey deposits against borrowings and
guarantees/against first loss/second loss default guarantees 2,690,98 3,959.69
Total 2,692.99 3,959.69
Note 6: Trade receivables (at amortised cost)
Particulars LS R
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Receivalvles
Receivables considered good - unsecured* 17.72 33764
Less: Provision for impairment ol trade receivables
17.72 337.64
(IT) Other Receivables
Other Receivables
Less: Provision for Impairment on other receivables
Total 17.72 337.64
*Ihased on past history of veceivaliles, Management considered Nil allowances towards credit Insses.
Note 7: Loan portfalio (at amortised cost)
Particulars Ayac SO
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Portfolio loans
Secured 49,153.46 29,027.40
Unsecured 3,000.43 3,833.66
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1.333.94) (668.84)
50,819.95 32,192.22
Total 50,819.95 | 32,192.22
() Secured by property 18,153.05 28,777.38
(i1) Secured by book debts 1,000.41 250.02
() Unsecured 3,00043 3.833.66
Total - Gross 52,153.89 32,861,06
Lesse Impaeenient loss allowance {1,355.94) (6GH.H4)
Total - Met 50,819.95 32,192.22
Loans in India
(i) Public Sector - -
(i) Others 52,153.89 32.861.06
Total - Gross 52,153.89 32,861.06
Less: linpatrment loss allowance (1,333.94) (GGR R
Total - Net 50,819.95 32,192.22
Lhe above amount includes the interest accrued and exclude siiamaortized boan processing fees, w follows:
Particulars
Interest accured 94327 567.88
Unamortised loan processing lve 839.28 512.01
# There are no loans or advances repayable on demand or without specifying any terms ot period of repayment of the related parties
N ¥




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 8: Other financial assets (at amortised cost)

q As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Security deposits (unsecured, considered pood) 28.15 24.53
Statf advance and other recoverable 9,86 35.96
Other recoverable 1,147.93 714,82
Unbilled eevenue 1.58 121.04
1,187.52 896.35
Note 9: Current tax asscts (net)
g As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance income-tax and 1'DS receivable 1,096.52 923.73
1,096.52 923.73
Note 10: Deferred tax assets (net)
. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tax effect of items constituting defcrred tax assets:
(@) Provision for Employee benefits 41.19 3398
(b) Depreciation and amortisation 38.56 33,74
(©) Carried lorward Losses 5341
(&) lmpact of IndAs 116 6.98 3,00
() Allowance for expected credit loss 513.69 607.29
(® Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 347.15 372.45
(h) Measurement of financial asscis and financial liabilities at amortised cost 0.59 0.00
948.16 1,104.27
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities: ’
(@) Provision for 36(1)(vita) 11.07 13.28
11,07 13.28
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net) 937.09 1,090.99
Notes:
(i) Movement in deferred tax assets /(linbilitics) for period ended March 31, 2025
Pactculars o e el o
March 31, 2024 g March 31, 2025
income and loss
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
@) Provision for Employce benefits 33,98 7.21 41.19
(b) Depreciation and amortisation 3374 482 3856
(c) Carried Forward Losses 53.41 (53.41)
(d) Impact of IndAs 116 3.00 3.98 698
(c) Provision for first loss default guarantee 607.29 (93.60) 513.69
(6 Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 372.85 (25.70) 347,15
() Measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost 0,00 0.58 0.59
1L,104.27 - (156.12) 948.16
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities:
(h) Provision for 36(1)(viia) 13.28 (2.21) 11.07
13.28 - (2.21) 11,07
Net deferred tax asset 1,090.99 - (153.91) 937.09
(ii) Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilitics) for vear ended March 31. 2024:
Pasticulare L W IR Aot
March 31, 2023 E March 31, 2024
income and loss
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
(@) Peovicion for Employee benefie 3246 1.25 0.72) 33.94
(b) Depreciation and amortisation 29.58 4,16 3374
(c) Carricd Forward Losses 302.69 (249.28) 5341
(d) Impact of IndAs 116 287 0.14 3.00
(€) Provision for ficst loss default uaantee 535.29 72.00 607 29
(f) Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 22245 15040 372.85
(8 Measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost 312 (3.12) 0.00
1,129.46 125 (26.42) 1,104.27
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities:
() Provision for 36(1)(viia) 591 7.37 1328
5.91 - 7.37 13.28
Net deferred tax asset 1,123,55 1.25 (33.79)




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in  in lakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

Note 13: Othier non-financial assets

Particul As at As at
ar [
ulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind ot for value to be received 66.16 7925
Prepaid expenses 763,61 495 84
829.77 575.09

Note 14: Trade payable

Particulars Lot LGTD
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of MSMLis 4317 13.78
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMIEs 199,94 113.28
243.11 127.06
Other Payables

() total outstanding dues of MSM1is
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMLEs

Total 243.11 127.06
Trade Payablex agcing schedule as on 31st March,2025
Particulars 0] ling for following periods from duc date of payment
Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years

(1) MSM13 4317
(i) Others 193.15 1.72 1.67 34
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues — Others
(v) Unbilled dises - .
Total 236.31 1,72 1.67 3.44
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 31st March, 2024
Particulars 0 ling for following periods from due date of payment

I Lens than | year 1-2 vears 2-3 Years Mote than 3 years
(i) MSMI; : 1378 -
if) Others 102.77 4.11 2.08 4.33

() Dhspured dues — MSME
(v] Disputed dues — Others
(v1 Unbilled dues -
Total 116.54 4.11 2.08 4.33
#: T'here are no cases where no due date of payment is specified.

#1: There is no cases of transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

Note 15: Debt securities (at amortised cost)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non-convertible debentures 8,974.09 1,952.13
8.974.09 1.952.13
Debt securities in India 8,974.09 195213
Debt securities outside Tndia
8,974.09 1,952.13
Unamortised Processing Fees 165.84 6285
Accrued Interest 140.92 14.98
Particulars T'ermis of Repayment As at As ae
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

MNon-convertilhle debentures 1)

2000 (March 31, 2024: 20K1), (110.85%, rated, listed, fully psaidd up, serine, secured, redeemable, veable, none
convertible debentures of face value of ¥ 1,00,000 cach, The date uf ullficiit b Match 04, 2024, Rodeemiible at ‘par i . -
(ecured By way of hypothecation of first ranking, exclusive and continuing charge on book debt which shall At 04, 2025 2906 195213
maintatne at 105% of principal incluging interest accrued amount of the debentures outstancling)

2500 (March 31, 2024: Nil), @10.85%, rated, lintedl, fully piid up, senior, secared, rodeermble, toable, oo,
eonvertible debentires of e value df 21,00,000 ech, The date of allorment i Junc 28, 2024,

(Sevaeed by way of hypathecation of et ranking, exchinye md eontrumg charge on b
P bairieed ae T8 of peincipal ineliding interest acemaed weiount of the dehentuees ow

Redeemable at pac on
k deby which shall o June 26, 2026

anling,)

LI (March 31, 2024: Nil), @10.80%, vated, luted, tully paid up, senior, sceured, redeemmable, tevable, noie
convertible debentures of face value of % 1,00,000 cach, “The date of allotment i August 30, 2024 Redeemable at pae on 1.982.03
(Seeured by way of hypothecation of first ranking, exclusive and continuing charge on book debt which shall b August 30, 2026 CLEaiS
mamtained at 105% of principal including interest acerued amount of the debentures outstanding)

2,518,54

ZA00 (Mirch 31, 20245 Nil), @ 10H0%, e, Neted, fully paid up, senior, secured, redieamahle, teable, non-
convertible debentures of face value of T 1,00,000 each, The date of allotment 1y September 20, 2024. Redeermable  at par on 2.465.98
(Secured by way of hypothecation of first ranking, exclusive ind continuing charge on book debt which shall [y September 20, 2026 DR

maintained at 105% of principal including interest accrucd amount of the debentures outstanding.}

-8k
- = z
£ > <




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 16: Borrowings (nther than debt sccurities)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Term loans from bank (At amortised Cost)

Secured# 2,700.59 3,230.47

Unsecured
Term loans from financial institutions(At amortised Cost)

Secured## 19,988.17 16,068.19
Securitization (PTC) 11,845.58 3,942.20
Loan from related parties (unsecured)

Lease liability 351.12 218.53
34,885.46 23,459.39
Borrowings in India 34,885.46 23,459.39
Borrowings outside India
34,885.46 23,459.39

# Secured by way of Hypothecation of book debt to the extent of 125% of the value of the loan outstanding and Secured by way of Hypothecation of Vehicles.

##Secured by way of Hypothecation of book debt to the extent of 100% to 133% of the value of the loan outstanding.

#i##: There are no instances where the company has not used the borrowings from banks ang financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.
H##Quartedy retums or statements filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account.

Unamortised Processing Fees 27718 187.37
Accrued Interest 188.70 117.68

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities .
The changes in the Company’s liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Partlculars Debt securlities Other Borrowings Uabillty:::::st Jeaess Total
Mlurch 31, 2023 553.09 16,332.63 169.22 17,054.94
Adoption of Ind AS 116 - 179.16 179.16
Cash flows:
- Repayment (500.00) (14,840.66) 91.89) (15,432.50)
- Proceeds from overdraft facility 3 -
- Proceeds other than overdraft facility 2000.00 21,647.23 23,647.23
- Others -38.61 v 67.60 28.99
Non cash:
- Conversion of Optionally Convertible, Redeemable Preference Shares
- Foreign exchange .
- Amortisation of upfront fees and others -62.35 (62.06) (124.41)
- Others 96,12 (38.02) 58.10
Mureh 31, 2024 1,952.13 23,240.86 218.52 25.411.51
| Adoption of Ind AS 116 - 276.16 276.16
Caeh flows:
- Repayment (15,644.66) (10457) (15,749.25)
- Proceeds from overdraft facility -
- Proceeds other than overdraft facility 6,999.00 26,956.95 - 33,955.95
- Others 125,95 71.02 - 196.97
Non cash:
- Conversion of Optionally Convertible, Redeemable Preference Shares
- Foreign exchange -
- Amortisation of upfront fees and others -102.99 (89.81) - (192.80)
- Others (38,99 (38.99
March 31, 2025 8,974.09 34.534.34 351.12 43,859.55
Note 17: Other financial liabititics
Particulars LG L
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest accrued but not due on Long Term Borrowings
Ficst loss default guarantee liability*
Other payable 17.36 27.34
Expenses payable 283.78 215.78
Total 301.14 243.12




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 18: rovisions

Particulars GO At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for compensated absences 99.78 99.82
Provision for gratuity 48.29 22.32
Provision for first loss default puarantee 512.54 1,514.08
Total 660.61 1,636.22
*-Company has made provision on acocuat ol compensated abscnces based on Expert Clpuion and Actuvial Valuation considering Basic Salacy of employees.
Note 19: Other non-fi inl liabilities
Particulars Lo L
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory dues payable 106.05 108.15
Total 106.05 108.15




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

Note 22: Interest Income (micasured at amortised cost)

Particulars

For the pcriod ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Interest income on portfolio loans
Interest income on deposits

9,990.08 6,223.68
255.51 323.82
10,245.59 6,547.50

Note 23: Fees and commission income

Particulars

For the pcriod ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Income from BC opetations and other support scrvices
Documentation charges
Login Fee Income

1,457.35 4,869.04
415.77 255.24
25592 165.03

2,129.04 5,289.31

Note 24: Net gain on fair value changes

Particulars

For the period ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss
- Mutual Funds

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes

I'air Value Changes:
-Realised

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes

96.17 64.23
96.17 64.23
96.17 64.23
96.17 64.23

Note 25: Other Income

Particulars

For the period ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Miscellancous income

Interest income on security deposits

Net gain on derecognition of property, plant and equipment
Foreclosure charges received

163,63 206.01
1.64 0.66
459 14.67

21,05 18.13

190.91 239,47

Note 26: Finance cost (on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)

Particulars

For the period ended
March 31, 2025

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

Interest on borrowings
Interest on borrowings other than debt sccuritics

2,529.86 2,097.02
Interest on debt securitics 736.58 35.61
Interest on borrowings from bank 387.14 343,75
Other interest expenses 306,88 138.37
Interest expense on lease liability 46,86 28.88
4,007.32 2,643.63

Note 27: Impairment on financial instruments (on financial assets measured at amortised cost)

Particulars

For the period ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Allowance for expected credit loss
Portfolio loans written off

665.10 92.15
663.56 266.08
1,328.66




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 28: Employee benefit expenses

Parti For the period ended For the year ended
articulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,345.24 5,260.06
Contribution to provident and other funds 308.12 432.19
Staff welfare expenses 63.66 63.09
4,717.02 5,755.34
Note 29: Depreciation and amortization ¢xpense
Parti For the period ended For the year ended
articulars 0
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 92.03 78.16
Amortisation on intangible assets 2.70 310
Amortisation on right of use assets 93.16 75.18
187.89 156.44
Note 30: Other cxpenses
Parti For the period ended For the year ended
articulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bank charges .77 59.80
Rent 127.28 197.46
Travelling and conveyance 319.36 269.40
Repair and maintainance 6.38 12.82
Printing and stationery 41.94 78.83
Comimunication cost 53.53 7245
Insurance charges 2391 29.18
Software & IT support expenses 108.07 117.97
Rates and taxes 11.99 34,55
Electricity charges 18.74 25.82
Auditor's remuneration® 29.70 32.20
Business promotion 0.28 6.70
Commission paid** 47.74 62.53
Loan Processing Charges 349.12 244.24
Legal and professional charges 158.53 61.32
Director sitting fees 7.63 534
Balance write off 30.62 65.62
Office expenses 169.89 157.29
Write off against first loss default guarantee 778.61 781.54
First loss default guarantee expenses -1,001.55 166.63
Postage & coutier 33.27 2791
Miscellaneous expenses 97 13.75
1.362.52 2,523.35
Note*: Auditors remuneration includes payments as [ollows:
() Statutory audit 10.00
() Tax audit 3.50
(c) Centification fee and other services 16.20

Total

29.70




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts in  in lakhs, unless stated othenwise)

Note 16A: Terms of principal repayment of' Debt Securities & Other Borrowings as at March 31, 2025

Due within 1 year Due between 1to 2 Due between 2 to 3 Due beyond 3 Years Total
Original maturity No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount
ofloan fgiccestiate installme installmen installmen installment
nts ts ts s
Below 9.00% 24 7.00 24 7.69 10 3.53 | 18.22
M 9% to 12% 105 8.349.28 55 5,718.86 4 359.19 14,427.33
onthly =
12.01%% to 5% 427 9,660.81 260 7.224.69 103 2,746.39 19,631.88
Above 15%0 - -
Below 9.00% -
Quarterly 9% to 12% - - -
12.01% to 15% 4 363.64 2 181.74 545.38
9% to 12% - 1 2,000 3 6,999 8,999.00
Bullet 12.01% to 15% - -
Above 15% - . . . - - -
Total 561 20,380.74 344 20,131.98 117 3,109.10 - - 43,621.82
Terms of prineipal repiayment of Debt Sccurities & Other Borrowings as at March 31, 2024
Original maturity | Interest rate Due within 1 year Due between 1to 2 Due between 2 to 3 Due beyond 3 Years Total
of loan No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount
installme installmen installmen installment
nts ts ts s
Below 9.00% 12 5.87 12 6.40 11 6.37 - 18.64
Monthly 9% to 12% 72 2,813.42 50 2,448.12 11 808.52 - - 6,070.06
12.01% to 15% 370 7.194.53 266 5,397.21 95 2.490.30 G 142.00 15,224.04
Above 15% 24 476.65 25 528.54 - - 1,005.19
Quarterly 12.01% to 15% 6 446.97 4 363.64 2 181.82 - 992.42
Bull 12.01% to 15% - 1 2,000.00 1 0.20 2,000.20
ullet
Above 15% . - - - . - . -
Total 484 10,937.44 358 10,743.91 119 3,487.00 7 142.20 25,310.56
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20  Equity share capital Ag at

March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

Authorised equity share capital

15, R00 L0

15,800.00

15,755.79

15,755.79

15,755.79

15,80,00,000 (31 March 2024: 15,80,00,000) Equity shares of T10 each |5 A
15,800,040

Issued and eubscribed

15,75,57,892 (31 March 2024: 15,75,57,892) Equity shaces of 210 each 15,755.79
15,755.79

Paid up equity share capital

15,75,57,892 (31 March 2024: 15,75,57,892) Equity shares of 210 each 15,755.79
15,755.79

15,755.79

i) Righte, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The company has only one class of equity shares having par face value 0f 3 10 per Shace. Fach equity shaceholder is eligible for one vote per share held. Any dividend, if proposed by the Board of Directors,

is subject to the rpproval of shareholders. Dividend decl

d and paid would be in Indian rupees. Dividends are subject to corporate dividend tax. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of

equity share will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential The di jon will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.
ii) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at reporting year end date Mo, of ghires R Nao, of shares L4
Equity share capital of ? 10 each fully paid up Marcli 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 15,75,57,802 15,755.79 14,05,14,859 L 051 40
Add: Issued during the year 1,700,443 33 1,704.30
Balance at the end of the year 15,75,57,892 15,755.70 15,75,57,802 15,755,749
iii) Equity shares held by holding/p pany as at bal sheet date:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
% change
% change during during the

Equity share capital of ¥ 10 each fully paid up No. of shares % holdi; the year No. of shares % holding year
Satin Creditcace Network Limited 15,75,57,602 TR 0.00% 157557002 100.00% 0.00%

15,75,57,892 100,00%. 0.00% 15,75,57,802  100.00% 0.00%
iv) Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company aa at balance sheet date:

Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Equity share capital of ¥ 10 each fully paid up No. of shares % holding No. of sharee % holding
Satin Creditcare Network Limited 15,75,57 402 (EELS 13,75,57,82 TN

15,75,57,402 RO, 15,75,57, 892 RO G054
v The Company has neither issued equity shares p to ithout pay being received in cash or any bonua shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the

current year and five years i liately preceding the bal sheet date except p to sch of Ig: ion ag d above.
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21 Other equity As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained earnings (313.78) (910.41)
Statutory reserves @ 561.80 412.74
Amalgamation reserve 725.23 72523
Securities Premium 2,295.70 2,295.70

Total Other Equity 3,268.95 2,523.26

@ Statutory resetves
"The reserve is created as per the provision of Section 45(IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. This is a restricted reserve

and no appropriation can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescribed by Reserve Bank of

India.

Particulars Amount (Rs. In lac)
Net assets received 4,526.71
Equity shate capital (as per approved scheme) 3,801.49
Amalgamation Reserve 725.23
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 31: Earning per Share
Net profit/ (Loss) for the year 745.28 514.77
Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS 15,75,57,892 14,94,55.466
Par valuc per share (in RS.) 10 10
Basic LEarnings per share (in RS.) 0.47 0.34
Nominal value of equity share ) 10.00 10.00
Weighted-average number of equity shages used to compute diluted carnings per share 15,75,57,892 14,94,55,466
Diluted Earnings per share (in RS.) 0.47 0.34
Note 32: Tax Expense
Current tax (including taxes earlicr ycars) 159.27 154.94
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement 34.38 (150.40)
Deferred tax expense/(credit) : 119.37 184.21
313.02 188.75

The major components of income tax cxpense and the reconciliation of cxpense based on the domestic cffective tax rate of at 27.82% and the
reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 1,058.30 703.52
At country’s statutory income tax rate of 27.82% 294,42 195.72
(March 31, 2024: 27.82%)

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense

() Tax impact of expenses which is non deductible

(i) Tax impact on items exempt under income tax

(ii)) Impact of diffcrence in tax rate on certain items -
(iv) Preliminary expenses allowed

(v) laclier year taxes 453
(vi) Others 18.60 (11.50)
313.02 188.75

Note 33: Leascs
The Company has taken various office premises under lease arrangements. Generally, the lease term varies from 11 months to 60 months and is
renewable under mutually agreed terms between lessee and lessor and there is no exclusive right to the company. The company has considered leases
having initial lease term of upto 12 months as short term leases as per para 6 of Ind AS 116 and thier expenses have been recognised as Rent under
note 30. For all other leases having lease tecm of more than 12 months a right of use asset is cecognised with a corresponding lease liabiliy. "The right
of use asset 1s disclosed under Property, Plant and Equipement and lease liability is disclosed under Borrowings. Further disclosures as on March 31,
2025 are as follows:

1 The table below describes the naturce of the Company’s leasing activitics by type of right-of-use asset recognised on balance sheet:

Right of usc asset Officc Premises

i For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars b

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Toml number of leases 70 117
MNumber of leases consiclered as slhiornt term leascs 3G 81
Mo, of nght-ul use asscts leased 34 3G
Range of remaining term Upto 54 months Upto 57 months
Averige remaining lease term 41 months 22 months
Mo. of leases with extension oplions 0 0
No. of leases with purchase oprions 0 a
No. of leases with variable payments linked to an index 1 0
Mo of leases with termination nptions 70 117

2 Additional information on the tight-of-use assets by class of asscts is as follows:
Particulars Righ of use asset
Office Premises
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2024 205.37
Addition 276.16
Lieprecintion 93.16
Deletion 67,72
Carrying amount as on March 31, 2025 320.66
3 Bifureation of Lease liabilitics in current and non current as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current 75,59 57.50
Non-cureent 275.53 161.03
Total 351.12 218.53
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At 31 March 2025 the Company do not have any committed leases which had not yet commenced.

“T'he undiscounted maturity analysis of lease liabilities at March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Particulars Lease payments Finance charges Net present values
Within 1 year 118.21 42.62 75.59
1-2 years 116.67 31.82 84.85
2-3 years 115.62 19.61 96.01
3-4 years 87.22 7.44 79.78
4-5 years 15.61 0.72 14.89
Total 453.33 102.21 351.12

The undiscounted maturity analysis of lease liabilities at 31 March 2024 is as follows:

Particulars Lease payments Finance charges|  Net present values
Within 1 year 81.65 24.14 57.50
1-2 years 67.96 17.26 50.71
2-3 years 56.44 11.26 45.18
3-4 years 55.84 5.02 50.82
4-5 years 14.86 0.54 14.32
Total 276.75 58.22 218.53

‘I'he Company has clected not to tecognise a lease liability for short term leases (leases of expected term of 12 months or less) or for leases of low value
asscts, Payments made under such leases ace expensed on a straight-line basis. In addition, certain variable lease payments are not permitted to be
recognised as lease liabilities and are expensed as incurted. Ihe Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilitics as the
current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due

‘The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

Operating leases

The Company has taken on lease certain assets under operating lease arrangements. The contractual future minimum lease payment obligation in

respect of these leases are as under:

Office premises

Particulars March 31, 2025 . March 31, 2024

Short teem leases 127.28 197.46

Leases of low value asscts

Variable lease payments .

Total 127.28 197.46

Minimum lease obligations:

- within one year 75.59 57.50
Later than one year but not Later than five years 275.53 161.03

- Later than five years

‘The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 244.91 lakh in March 31, 2025 (Rs. 298.57 lakh in March 31, 2024).

‘The followmyg are the amounts recogased in priofit or loss:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use asscts 93.16 75.18
Interest expense on lease liabilitics 46.86 28.88
Lixpense relating to short-terin leases (included in other expenses) 127.28 197.46
Fipense relating o leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) -
Variable lease payments (included in other expenses) E
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 267.30 301,52

‘The Company has lease contracts for office buildings used in its operations. Leases of these buildings generally have lease terms between 11 months
and 5 years years. The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets Generally, the Company is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased asscts. I'here ace several lease contracts that include extension and termination options, which are further
discusscd below.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. L'hese options are negotiated by management to provide
fexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business necds. NManagement exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

"The Company does not have any lease contracts that contains vaciable payments

Set out below are the undiscounted potential future sental payments relating to periods following Lhe excrcise date of extension and termination
options that are not included in the leasce term:

2025

Particulars Within five years More than five years Total

Lixtension options expected not to be excrcised (Count)

Termination options expected to be exercised (Count)

cnsion options expected not to be exercised (Amount in Lakhs)

Termination options expected to be exercised (Amount in Lakhs)




2024
Particulars

Within five years

More than five years Total

[stensinin options expecied not o be exercised ((Couni)
Termination oprions expected to be exercised (€ “ount)

Bxtension options expecied not to be exercised (Amount n Lakhs)

Teomination aptions expected to be exercised (Amount i Lakhg)

Note 34: Contingent Liabilities not provided for

No contingent liabilitics as on March 31, 2025 (previous year Nil). listimated amount of contracts remaining to be excecuted on capital account is Nil
(previous year Nil). Other commitments is Nil as on March 31, 2025 (previous year Nil).

34.1 Estimates

a) lmpaicment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

34.2

Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities
‘I'he classification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met based on facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition.
Financial asscts is measured using effective interest method by assessing its contractual cash flow characteristics only on the basis of facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition and if it is impracticable to assess clements of modified time value of money i.e. the use of cffective
interest method, faie value of financial asset at the date of teansition shall be the new cacrying amount of that asset. The measurement exemption
applies for financial liabilitics as well. ]
Applying a requirement is impracticable when the entity cannot apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so. It is impracticable to apply the
changes retrospectively if: o

a) The effects of the retrospective application or retrospective restatement ace not determinable;

b) ‘I'he retrospective application or restatement requires assumptions about what management’s intent would have been in that period;

The tettospective application or retrospective restatement requires significant cstimates of amounts and it is impossible to distinguish objectively
information about thosc estimates that existed at that time.

Note 35: Asset Under Management

The Company is also in the activity of business correspondent for various banks and NBIGs. The Company provides first and second loss default

puarantees in the form of fixed deposits/guarantees for Assets Under Management as per business correspondent agreements signed with various
banks and NBFCs.

‘The institutionwise Assets Under Management in books ofcompnny for business correspondence activity as on March 31, 2025 are as (ollows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Name of Partner FDR balance for FDR balance for

AN FLDG i FLDG
Yes Bank Ld. 520.88
RBL. Bank 1.td, 12.02 8.86 12,02 8.06
Reltance Commercial Finanee Ltd. 756,61 193.43 756.61 17991
l'ederal Bank 145.39 2,907.77 245.61
IDEC Fiest Bank Lid 2,367.48 1,309.32 3,954.14 1,292,93
Jana Small T'inance Bank Lid. 8,380.73 1,132.41
CSB Bank Ltd.* 1,452.16 83,02

3,136.11 1,657.01 17.463.43 3,462.82
I'DR balance includes accrued interest.
Note 36: Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Particulars e Aslat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The peieipil amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any suppher as at the end of cach
accounting year 4317 11.78

The amount of mterest paul by the buyer i terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along wth the
amounis of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

206,

“The amount ol interest due and payable for the period of delay m making payment (wlicls have been paid bt
beyatl the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act,

The amount of inrerest accrued and remaring unpasd at the end of each NECOUNTIE year,

expenditiee under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

‘The amount of further mterest remaiming due and payable even in succeeding years, uneil sucl date when the
irerest dues as above ace actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
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Note 37: Related party disclosures

<)

e

In accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standacd — 24 the names of the related parties whete contral/ability to exercise significant
influence exists, along with the aggregate amount of transactions and year end balances with them as identified and certified by the management are

given below:

. List of related parties and disclosures:

Description of relationship

Name of related parties

Iolding company

Linterprises over which key management personnel and relatives of such personncel exercise
significant influence with whom transactions have been undertaken:

liellow subsidiary companies

Iey managenal pecsonnel and their relatives:

Satin Creditcare Network Iimited

Satin Neo Dimensions Pyt. Ltd.

Satin Housing Tinance Limited

Satin Technologies Limited

Nume of key gerial personnel

Designation

Relatives

Mr. HU P Singh

Director

Mr. Satvinder Singh

Mrs. Anureet [1 I Singh

Mr. Varun Shankardass

Me, Sumit Mukherjee (Gl May 31, 2073

Ditector & CLLO

Mr. Dhiray Jha (w.e.E January 17, 2025)

CHUO)

Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna (6l March 5, 2025)

W' & CEO

Mr. Arjun Bansal

Chict T'inancal OTticer

M. Puneet Jolly (6l December 19, 2023)

Company Sccretary

Ms. Sangam Jaiswal (w.c.f. January 17, 2025)

Company Secretary

My Guevineler Singh (uill September 11, 2024) Company Sccretary

Name of Directors Designation

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta Tndependent Dicector

Ms. [you Ahluwalia Independent Director

Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra Independent Director

. Details of transactions with related pastics carried out in the ordinary course of business:

Name of related party Nature of transaction Fm[\;‘;;‘:f;z‘;g;:ﬁd ForNt[I:‘crcie;lltdeg;;led
Me. IFI P Singh Personal Guarantee given 6,515.00 7,037.50
Facilitation charges income 12.00 12.00
Technology shating services expense 76.50 90.00
Payment of rent for office space sharing 53.93 51.31
. Interest Paid 266,69
Satin Creditcare Network Limited Inter corporate loan taken 2,700.00
Loan Repaid 6,050.00
Share based payments 137
Income from business cotrespondents
operations and suppott scrvices 148538
Satin Neo Dimensions Pyt. Lid. IreEsAincome 'on lonnA 203
Repayment received against loan 39.33
Mr. Sumit Mukherjee (till May 31, 2023) Remuneration 17.60
Mr. Dhiraj Jha (w.c.f. January 17, 2025) Remuneration 14.41
Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna (till January 16, 2025 Remuneration 155.57 32.39
Mr.Arjun Bansal Remuneration 45.50 27.80
Mr. Punccet Jolly (till December 19, 2023) Remuneration 12.74
Ms. Sangam Jaiswal (w.c.f. January 17, 2025) Remuneration 436
Mtr. Gurevinder Singh (till September 11, 2024 Remuneration 8.51 328
Mr, Varun Shankardass (w.c.. December 11, 2024)  |Remuneration 12.26 -
Mr. Anil Kumar Kalea Sitting Fee 3.10 1.90
Mr, Sundeep Kumar Mcehta Sitting Fee 2.80 2.20
Mrs. Jyoti Ahluwalia Sitting, Fee 1.10 0.80
- Ouistanding balances with related parties in ordinary course of business:
Name of related party Nature of transaction As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Satin Creditcare Network Limited Share based payments- Payable 1.37

Note:

I Nt. H. P Singh, dircctor of the company has given personal guarantee for term loan taken from Bank/ 1. Outstanding as of March 31, 2025 is
Rs.10,486,75 Lakh (Previous Year: 8,418 24 Lakh).

2. Durinyg the year, expenditure of Rs, 1.37 Lakh ( Previous Year: Nil) has been charged to profit & loss account in relation to share based payment to
holding company on account of BESOP granted to KMP under 1:SOP scheme formulated by the holding company,

Key management personncl remuneration includes the following expenses: For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Short-ferm employee benefits 247.60 93.81
irst-employment benefits 6.23 (3.59)
Other long teem benefits 9.81 (7.30)
'T'otal remuneration 263.64 82.92 |
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Note 38: Employee Benefits
‘The Company has adopred Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 19 on Employec Benefit as under :

(i)

Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

‘The Company has made % 308.12 lakhs (March 31, 2024 Z 432.19 lakhs) contribution in tespect of provident fund and other funds.

Defined benefi¢ plans
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. The liability of Gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation. The scheme is funded by the Company and is managed by
Life Insurance Corporation of India (“LIC”) and ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Lid. jointly.

Risks associated with plan provisions

Salaty increascs

Actual salary mcreases will increase the Plan’s liability.
Increase in salary increase rate assumption in  future
valuations will also increase the liability.

[nvestment risk

If Plan is funded then assets linbilitics mismatch & aciual
investment return on assets lower than the discount rafe
assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

Discount rate

Reduction in discount rate in subscquent valuations can
increase the plan’s liability.

Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than

Mortality & disabili . ; . e
v bility assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilitics.
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed
Withdrawals withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subscquent

valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31,2024 |

Present value of obligation 94,66 83.06
Viair value of plan asscts 46.37 60.74
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision (48.29) (22..32)’

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Particulars As at Marcli 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Current scrvice cost 34.73 27.49
Net interest cost /(income) 1.59 4.42
[nterest cost on defined bencfit oblipgation - -
Net impact on profit (before tax) 36.32 3191
Actuarial (gain)/loss recopnised during the year 0.56 +.49
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other

comprehensive income 36.88 36.40




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

(iii)

@iv)

™)

(vi)

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance shect is as under:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 83.06 118.00
Current service cost 34.73 27.49
[nterest cost 5.91 8.72
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses 3 :
Benefits paid (31.76) (70.54)
Actuarial loss/{gain) on obligation

Actuatial (gain)/loss on atising from change in demographic assumption - 3.81

Actuarial (gain)/loss on atising from change in financial assumption 10.60 273

Actuarial (gain)/loss on atising from expericnce adjustment (7.88) (7.15)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 94.66 83.06

Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets):

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

lfunds managed by insurcr

100%

100%

Total

100%

100%

Movement in the plan assets recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

[Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 64.83 58.14
Actual return on plan assests 3.52 2,69
Employet’s contribution 9.99 59.00
Benefits paid (31.98) (59.09)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on plan asscts - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 46.37 60.74
Actuarial assumptions
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Discounting tate 6.94% 7.12%
Future salary inctease 6.00% 4.00%
Retirement age (years) 60.00 60.00
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 years 40.00% 40.00%

I'rom 31 to 44 years 20.00% 20.00%0

Above 44 years 10.00% 10.00%
Weighted average duration 3.92 3.63

Mottality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of TALM (2012-14)

Gratuity is payable to the employecs on death or resignation or on retitement at the attainment of superanauation age. ‘To provide for these
cventualities, the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimatc table.




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in R in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

(vii)

(viii)

®

(i)

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 94.66 83.06
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (2.89) (2.15)
- Impact due to decreasc of 0.50 % 3.05 2.26
Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 94.66 83.00
- Impact due to inctrease of 0.50 % 3.07 232
- lmpact due to decrease of 0.50 % (2.93) (2.22)
Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not matetial and hence impact of change due to these is not calculated.

Sensitivities as to rate of inctease of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not
applicable.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
0to 1 year 6.70 10.09
1 to 2 year 8.57 8.96
2'to 3 year 8.66 8.33
3 to 4 year 9.07 7.81
4 to 5 year 1.79 6.60
5 to 6 year 8.52 5.23
6 vear onwards 45.35 36.04
Compensated absences (non-funded)

Amount recogniscd in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Present value of obligation . 99.78 99.82
Fair value of plan assets ; . >
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 99.78 99.82

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
T'otal setvice cost 54.77 56.21
MNet interest cost on defined benefit obligation 711 8.89
Net actuatial (pain)/loss recognised during the year (3.41) (2.93)
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 58.47 62.17

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Note 39: Financial instruments
A Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of financial instcuments by catenon: are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
Notes to schedule

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial assets measured ac amortised cost
Cash and Cash equivalents 4 6,005,84 5,485.80
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents 5 2,692.99 3,959.6Y
Receivables 6 17.72 337.04
Looans 7 50,819.95 32,192.22
Secunty deposits 8 28.15 24.53
Other financial assets 8 1,159,37 871.82
Totwul 60,724.02 #2,871.76
Financiul liabilities measured at amortised cost
Pavabiles 14 243.11 127.06
elst secunties 15 8,974.09 1,952.13
Bormwings (other than debt securities) 16 34,534.34 23,240.80
(thet financial liabilities 17 301.14 243.12
Total 44,052.68 25,563.17

B Fair values hicrarchy

The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (A) above has been classified into three categoties depending o the inputs used in the valuation

technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priotity to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1 measurements| and lowest priority to
unobscrvable inputs [Level 3 measurcments). :

"I'he categories used are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market;

Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Company does not have any asscts measured at fair valuc at year end

B.1 Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

lair value of instruments measurcd at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3 inputs:

Parti As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
articulars

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Cash and Cash equivalents 6,005.84 6,005.84 5,485.86 5,485.86
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 2,692.99 2,692,99 3,959.69 3,959.69
Recuivables 17.72 17.72 337.04 337.64
Lumns 50,819.95 53,070.35 32,192.22 33,781.65
Secunty deposits 28.15 28.15 2453 24,53
Cther inncial assets 1,159.37 1,159.37 871.82 871.82
Touil 60,724.02 62,974.42 42,871.76 44,461.19
Financinl liabilities
Payables 243.11 243.11 127.06 127.06
Dlebt securities 8,974.09 8,974.09 1,952.13 1,952.13
Barrowings (other than debt sccutities) 34,534.34 34,534.34 23,240.86 23,240.86
Onhier lnaneial liabilities 301,14 301,14 24312 24312
Total 44,052.68 44,052.68 25,563.17 25,563.17

"The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade reccivables, other financial assets, trade payables and other
financial liabilities approximate their respective catrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturitivs of these instruments. The fair value of the financial
asscts and liabilities s included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing partics, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions wete used to estimate the fair values:

(i) Long-term fixed-rate reccivables are evaluated by the Company bascd on parameters such as interest rates, individual creditworthiness of the customer and other
market tisk factors.
(i) The fair values of the Company’s fixed interest bearing loans and receivables are determined by applying discounted cash flows (‘DCI) method, using discount

rate that reflects the issuer’s bortowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at March 31, 2025 was assessed to be
insignificant.

(iii) "U'he fair values of the Company fixed interest-beating debt securitics, botrowings and subordinalted liabilitics are determined by applying discounted cash flows

(‘DCI”) method, using discount rate that reflects the issuet’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. 'Ihe own non-performance isk as at March 31,
2025 was assessed to be insignificant,
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Note 40: Financial risk management

i)

A)

a)

Risk Management

The Company’s activitics expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Company risk management framework. ‘The Company's visk are managed by a treasury department under policies approved by the board of
dircctors. The board of directors provides written principles for overall tisk management. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to
and how the entity manages the tisk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Coredit nisk Cash and wcash - cquivalents,  loans,| Ageing analysis Bank deposits,
financlal assets measured at amortised ' diversilication  of]
i, ' asiet  base, © oredi

limnits and eollareral.

Lacpunehity risk Borrowings, debt sccuritics,{Rolling  cash  Aow|Avitilability of
subordinated liabilittes, and  other|forecasts. commitied credit
financial liabilities. lines and borrowing|

facilines

Market visk - interest rate Borrowings,  debt  sccurities  and|Sensitivity analysis. [Negotiation of]
subondmated liabilitics at variable rates. teriis that  reflect

the market factors.

Murket risk - e

Investments in equity securitics, mutual Sensitivity analysis — [IDwersificition of
funds, certificate of deposits antl commercial portfolio, witlt fotys
papers CHL ALrLipe

mvestmenls

"The Company’s sisk management is carried out under the pulicies approved by the boatd of directors, Lhe hoard of directors provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange tisk, interest rate risk, credit isk and investment of excess liquidity.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counlerparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure to crudit risk is influenced mainly by cash and
cash cquivalents, loan assests, and other financial assets measured at amortised cost. he Company continuously monitors defaults of customets and other
counterpartics and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls

Credit risk management

‘The Company assesses and manages credit tisk based on internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is petformed for each class of financial instruments
with different characteristics. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors
specific to the class of financial assets,

(®  Low credit risk on financial ieporting date

(i) Moderate credit risk

(i) Righ credit sk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the fallowing:

Asset Company Basis of categorisation Provision for cxpected credit loss

Low credit risk Cash and cash cquivalents, other bank {12 month expected credit loss
balances, investiments, loans and other
financial assets

Muiderate eredit sk Loans, trade reccivables and other Life time expected credit loss or 12
financial asscts month expected credit loss
Fligh eredit visk Loans and other financial assets Life tme expected credit loss fully

provided for

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial assct is considered when the counter pacty fails to make payments

within the agreed time perdod as per contract. Loss rates 1cfecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between current
and historical cconomic conditions.

Asscts are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a borrower declaring bankruptey or a litigation decided against.the Company.

"The Company continucs to engage with partics whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in statement
of profit and loss

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk*

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 Mauch 31, 2024
(1) Low credit risk on financial reporting date
Bank Balance in cuttent accounts & in Fixed Deposits 5,653,60 4,885.08
Bank balances other than above 2,692.99 3,959.69
Sccurity deposits 28.15 24.53
Other financial assets 1,159.37 871.82
Receivables 1772 337.64
Loans 47,818.99 30,769,54
(i) Moderate credit risk 1,615.67 711.87
(1)) High credit risk 2,719.23 1,379.65

* These represent gross carrying values of financial assets, without deduetion for expected credit losses

Y/
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b)

-

iii)

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits

Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and divesifying bank deposits and accounts in
diffcrent banks across the country. Ratings ate monitored periodically.

Receivables

Trade receivables menasured at amortized cost and credit risk related to these arc managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.

Other financial assets

Other financial asscts measuced at amortized cost includes loans and advances to employees, security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these other
financial assets is managed by monitoting the recoverability of such amounts continuously.

Loans

Crodit nisl related to bormower's are mitigated by consmdenny collateral’s/bank gunsntees etier of ceedit, from bonowers, The Company elosely monitors the
credit-worthiness of the borower's through internal systomy and project apprasal proceis o assess the credit visk and define credit Baits of borrower, therchy,
|imilit1g the credit nsk to pre-caleulated amounts. These processes include n detalled apptisal methodilogy, Wentification of rsks and suable structunng aned
erecht nsk ot

ton measunes. The Compaty avdesses incrense in eredit risk on an cayggonng basis for amounts loan recevablis thar become past due and default
i considored 1o hive oceutred when amounts receivable become 0 ilays past due

Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans
Company provitles for expected credit losses on fnancial nssets by assessing mdividual financial instruments for expectation of any credit losses:

- For cash and cash agpunvitlents and otlicr bank balances - Sitee the Company deals with only high-rated banks and financial institutions, credit risk in respect of
cash wndl easlt equivalents, other bank balances and bank deposits is evaluated as very low.

- For investments - Considering the investments ate in mutual funds, certificate of depsoits and Goveenment securitics, credit risk is considered low.
- For loans comprising security deposits paid - Credit risk is considercd low because the Company is in possession of the underlying asset

Far other financinl assers - Crecit sk i evaludted bayed on Company's knowledge of the eradit worthiness of those parties amd loss allowance is measured for
12 month expected erodit losses upon initial recognition and provide for lifetime expected eredit losses apon significant inerease in credit tisk. The Company
does not have any expected loss bised impairment recognised on sueh pisets considering their low credit ssk nntuee, though the reconciliation of cxpucted eredie
lows for all sub eategories of finuncial assets (other thun loans) are disclosed belows

Estimated gross Expected Expected credit | Carrying amount
As at carrying amount |  probability of losses net of impairment
March 31, 2025 at default default provision
Bank Palanee in current accounts & in Fixed Deposits 5,653.60 0% - 5,653.60
3ank balances other than above 2,692.99 0% 2,692.99
Secunty deposits 28.15 0% 28.15
Uiher financial assets 1,159.37 0% 1,159.37
Receivithles 17.72 0% 17.72

Estimated gross Expected Expected credit | Carrying amount
As at carrying amount |  probability of losses net of impairment
March 31, 2024 at default default provision
Iank Balance in current accounts & in Fixed Deposits 4,885.08 0% 4,885.08
Bank balances other than above 3,959.69 0% 3,959,69
Sceurity deposits 2453 0% - 24.53
Other financial asscts 871.82 0% 871.82
Receivables 337.64 0% 337,64

=

The company has off hoaks portfolio of lowns which is being managed on behall of prnciple partners, The company has pravide fixed deposits to the principle
parmners against fiest loss defaul guarantee. The said fixed deposits are lien marked 10 the concemed prneiple partnes.

The compuny records first loss default puarantee lablilty based on conteact terms with each prmerple pirmens as on'cach repoiting date. Along with fitst loss
delault puarantee liability the company tlso téeognzie loss allwance measured on lifetme expected credit 10ss as o each reporting date.

Expected credit loss for loans
The Company follows a ‘threc-stage’.model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:
A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial. recognition is classified in ‘Stage 17 and has its credit tisk continuously monitored by the Company ic

the default in repayment is within the range of 0 to 30 days.

If a significant increase in credit risk (SICR’) since initial recognition is identificd, the financial instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not vet deemed to be credit
impaited i.c. the default in repayment is within the range of 31 to 90 days.
If the financial instrument is credit-impaited, the financial instrument is then moved to ‘Stage 3 i.c. the default in repayment is more than 90 days

"The Expected Credit Loss (EC1) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime BCL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets, ECL is the
product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default.




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in X in lakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay
When such events occur, the Company catefully considers whether the event should tesult in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3
for 1LCl. calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Such events include:

(i) The bortower is deceased

(i) A material decrease in the underlying collateral value where the recovery of the loan is expected from the sale of the collateral

@iif) A material decrease in the borrower’s turnover or the loss of a major customer

(iv) The borrower tequesting emergency funding from the Company

‘The Expected Credit Loss (3CL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan asscts. ECL is the
product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default.

Forward-looking economic information (inclhding management overlay) is included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, 1ZAD and LGD. The
assumptions undetlying the expected credit loss ate monitored and reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans from beginning to end of reporting period:

; . | Stage 3 (More than
Particulars ) Stage 1(0-30 days) |Stage 2 (31-90 days) g 90 (Davs)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 21,259.10 527.41 916.50
Asscts originated or purchased 18,357.77 104.74 94.38
Nt transfer between stages
"Transfer to stage 1 87.21 (36.20) (51.01)
‘T'ransfer to stage 2 (612.97) 617.72 4.73)
‘Transfer to stage 3 (542.09) (241.23) 783.32
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (7,779.47) (260.57) (92,71)
Write - offs (266.0%)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 30,769.54 711.87 1,379.65
Assets originated or purchased 31,799.40 259.70 AT
Net transfer between stages
Teansfer to stage 1 40.63 (15.68) 2499
‘Transfer to stage 2 (1,599.19) 1,619.95 {20.70)
“I'ransfer to stage 3 (1,707.75) (458.72) 2,166.47
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (11,483.64) (501.44) (219.03)
Write - offs (663.56)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 47,818.99 1,615.67 2,719.23
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period:
Reconciliation of loss allowance Stage 1(0-30 days) |Stage 2 (31-90 days) Sl:lgeo?) (Il;dore than
ays)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 50.32 119.48 406.88
Increase of provision due to assets originated or purchased during the period 24.61 18.48 34
Net teansfer between stages - -
I'ransfer to stage 1 31,13 (8.27) (22.85)
Transfer to stage 2 (4.78) 6.89 (2.11)
I'ransfer to stage 3 oty (57.02) 61.02
Impact of ECL on exposures transferred between stages during the year (40.29) 69.60 18945
Asscts flcrccogxliscd or collected (15.13) (23.56) {165.30)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 41.25 125.61 50197
Increase of provision due to assets orignated or purchascd during the period 34,87 42,93 3671
Net transfer between stages
T'ransfer to stage 1 11.84 277 9.08)
T'ransfer to stage 2 (2.14) 9.70 (7.553)
“L'ransfer 1o stage 3 229 (80.94) 83.23
Imipact of ECL on exposures transferred between stages ducing the year 8.36 203,16 691.76
Assets derecognised or collected 6.01) (12.61) (334,10)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2025 85.89 285.08 962.97

*Note: ‘I'he management is maintaining overlays of approx. Rs.3.40 crorc to address future contingencies & uncertainty, macrocconomic factor affecting
small ticket size business loans etc.
B) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering

cash or another financial assct “I'he Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to cnsure as far as possible, that it will have sufficiene liquidity to meet its
liabilitics when they are due.

"The Company maintains felxibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors the Company's liquidity positions
(also comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expecied cash flows. ‘The Company also takes into account
liquidity of the macket in which the entity operates.

iy Financing arrangements

“I'he Crmpany has access to the following undeawn horrowing facilities at the end of the reporiing peniod:

Particulars Total lacility Drawn Undrawn
March 31, 2025
- Expiring beyond one year 100 100
- Expiring within one year
Total 100 B 100
March 31, 2024

Lixpiringdesond one year 3,000 . 3000
bt e year 1,100 600 51

4,100 600 3,500
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(ii)  Maturities of financial assets and liabilities

‘The tables below analyse the Company financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contmactual maturitics
“T'he amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash fows:

As at March 31, 2025 Less than [ year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Finuncial assets

ash and Cash equivalents : 6,007.85 6,007.85
"4k balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,715.81 1,1128.80 136.65 - 2,881.27
Recewalles 17.72 - . 17.72
[ oans 30,540.26 24,463.49 12,311.25 2,027.09 69,342.10
Other financial assets 1,171.16 175 1.69 1292 1,187.52
Total undiscounted financial assets 39,452.80 25,494.04 12,449.59 2,040.02 79,436.45
Financial liabilities

Debt secunties 2,848.85 7,371.17 - . 10,220.02
Borrowings (other than debt securities but including interest accrued) 21,752.96 14,412.90 3,350.70 94.68 39,611.24
Pagaliles 243.11 - 243.11
Cther financial liabilitics 301.14 301.14
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 25,146.06 21,784.07 3.350.70 94.68 50,375.51
Met undiscounted financial asseds/ (Habilities) 14,306.75 3,709.97 9.098.89 1,945.34 29,060.95
As at

March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Financial assets

Cash and Cash cquivalents 5,485.86 - 5,485.86
'Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,872.02 2,331,66 144.91 4,348.59
Recetvables 337.64 337.64
L 18,866.06 14,842.24 8,49530 2,039.54 44,243.14
Other fimancial assets 896.35 896.35
Total undiscounted financial asscts 27,457.92 12,173.91 8,495.30 2,184.45 55,311.57
Financinl labilities

[3ebt sccurities 200.35 2,90.96 - - 2,291,32
Burrdwings (other than debt securitics but including interest accrued) 13,462.61 9.864.55 3,741.74 21272 27,281.62
Payalilos 127.06 E 127.06
Other financial liabilitics 243,12 24312
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 14,033.14 11,955.51 3.741.74 212.72 29,943.12
Net undiscounted financial asscts / (liabilities) 13,424.78 5,218.40 4,753.56 1,971.72 25,368.45

C) 'Market risk
a) Interest rate risk
i) Liabilities
"The Company’s policy is to minimisc interest rate cash fow risk exposures on long-term financing. At March 31, 2025, the Company 1s exposed to changes in market interest rates

through bank borrowings at variable intetest rates. The Company's investments in fixed deposits all pay fixed interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure

Below is the overall expiinire of the (5 HHEINY to nterest rate risk:

Particulars £oeq Lo
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Varinble rate Habilitics

Thotrowings atlier than dabt secyritios 8,511.74 10,007.76
Fixed rare Habilities

Debt Sccurities 73717 1,952.13

Horrowangs other than delir securities 27,625.51 13,233.10
Totul 43,508.43 25,192.99
Sensitivity

"Sensitivity, of profit or loss in bor rowing having fixed interest rates, is not applicable

ii) Assets
‘The Company’s fixed deposits are cacried at amortised cost and are fied rate deposits. They ate therefore not subject to interest mte tisk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest mates.
Note 41: Capital Management

The Company’s capital management objectives are to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going coucern, to comply with externally imposed capital requisement and
maintain steong credit ratings and to provide an adlequate return to sharcholders,

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive levesige. This ks into aecount the
subordination levels of the Company’s various classes of debt. ‘The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustineits to it in the Tighe of ehanges in econmmie conditions

and the risk ¢haracteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjint the amount of dividamds paacd 1o shaceholders, return
capital to sharcholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Borrowings (other tlan ilelt securitics) 34,885.46 23:439.39
Debt Securities 8,974.09 1,952.13
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (6,007.85) (5.485.86)
Net debe* 37.851.70 19,925.66
Ly Share Capital 15,755.79 15,755.79
Other Luity 3,268.95 2,523.26
Total equity 19,024.74 18,279.05
Net debt to equity rato / Gearing ratio 1,99 1.09

* Nevdelit meludes debt securities + by swne other than debr securities + suly ordlinared lablines + interest accrued - cash and cash equivalents - bank balances other than cash &
cash gepuivilents{ non Jien macked).

’
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Note 42: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within | More than Within | More than
12 months | 12 months Total 12 months | 12 months Total
ASSETS
Financiul assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,005.84 - 6,005.84 5,485.86 5,485.86
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,592.84 1,100.16 2,692.99 587.88 3,371.81 3,959.69
Receivables 17.53 0.19 17.72 337.64 +337.64
Loans 21,638.82 | 29,181.13 [ 50,819.95 | 12,501.24 | 25377.08 | 37,878.32
Other financial assets 1,187.52 . 1.187.52 896.35 - 896.35
30,442.55 | 30,28147 | 60,724.02 | 19,808.97 | 28,748.89 | 48,557.85
Non Financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 1,096.52 1,096.52 923.73 923.73
Deferred tax asséts (net) - 937.09 937.09 - 1,090.99 1,090.99
Property, plant and equipment 75.59 526.83 602.41 51.50 274.48 331.98
Other intangible asscts - 5.38 538 236 236
Capital WIP - . 9.21 9.21
Other non financial assets 829.78 - 829.78 575.09 - 575.09
905.37 2,565.81 347118 644.16 2,289.20 2,933.36
TOTAL ASSETS 31,347.92 | 32,847.28 | 64,195.20 | 20,453.13 | 31,038.09 | 51,491.22
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Trade Payables -
total outstanding dues of MSMEs 43.17 - 43.17 13.78 13.78
total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSMEs 199.94 - 199.94 113.28 . 113.28
Debt securities 2,006.94 6,967.15 8,974.09 - 1,952.13 1,952.13
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 21,752.96 | 13,132.50 | 34,885.46 9,640.38 | 13,819.01 | 23,459.39
Other financial liabilities 301.14 - 301.14 243.12 . 243.12
24,304.15 | 20,099.65 | 44,403.80 | 10,010.56 | 15,771.14 | 25,781.70
Non Financial Liabilities
Provisions 539.47 121.14 660.61 29.66 1,606.56 1,636.22
Other non financial liabilities 106.05 . 106.05 108.15 - 108.15
645.52 121.14 766.66 137.81 1,606.56 1,744.37
TOTAL Liabilities 24,949.67 | 20.220.79 | 45,170.46 | 10,148.37 | 17,377.70 | 27,526.07
Net 6,398.25 | 12,626.49 | 19,024.74 | 10,304.76 | 13,660.39 | 23,965.15




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwisc)

Note 43: Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeling the applicability threshold, nceds to spend at-least 2% of its avemge net profit for the imunediately preceding three

financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. | he said section is applicable on the company, however, considering average profit for last 3 yeacs, amount required to be
spent under CSR is nil.

a. Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is Nil and previous year is Nil
b. Amount spent during the year on:

For the period ended March 31, 2025 For the period ended March 31, 2024
Particulars Paid Yet to be paid Total Paid Yet to be paid Total
1. Construction/acquisition of an asset : .

2. On purpose other than (1) above

Note 44: Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single repartable segment i.e. financing activity, which has similac risks and returns for the purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operting segments” and is considered to
be the only reportable business segment. ‘The Company derives its major vevenues from financing activitics and its customers are widespread. Further, the Company is operating in India
which is considered as a single geographical segment.

Note 45: Additional disclosures as required by the Reserve Bank of India

(i) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024

CRAR (%) 37.62 48.00

CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 37.62 48.00

CRAR - Tier 11 Capital (%)

Liquidity Coverage Ratio 202% 219%

Amount of subordinated debt mised as Tier-11 capital
Amount mised 1y issue of Perpetual Debe nstriments

@if)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Value of Investments

Gross Value of Tnvestments

(@) In India

lh) Chutzicle India,

Provisions for Depreciation

() 1n India

{b) OQuside Tritis,

Mer Value of Tnvestments

(@) In India

(b . Ohatsaile India,

Moayement of provisions held towards deprecintion on i t

(0] Opening balance

(i) Add : Provisions made during the year
(iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year
(iv) Closing balance

(iii) Derivatives:-
"The Company has no transactions/ cxposure in derivatives in the cureent petiod and previous period.

(iv) Details of assignment transactions undertaken:-
"The Company has no transactions/exposure in assignment transactions in the current period and previous period.

(v) Details of financial asset sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for asset reconstruction:-:-
The Company has not sold financial assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction Companies for assct reconstruction in the current period and previous period.

(vi) Details of non-performing fi ial assets purchased / sold:-

The Company has not purchased/sold non-pecforming financial asset in the current period and previous period.

(vii) Exposure to real estate sector:-
The Company has no exposure to real estate sector during the current period and previous period.

(viii) Exposure to capital market:-
The Company has no exposure to capital market duting the current period and previous period.
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(ix) Disclosure relating to securitization:-

The Company has entered into agreement for the sccuritization of loans with assignees, wherein it has sccuritized a part of iis loans portfolioc amounting to INR
12,358.52 lakhs duning the yoar vided March 31, 2025 (Mareli 31, 2024 INR 425971 lakhs ), bewy the praerul vidue outstanding as on the ddte of the deals that are
outstanding. "I'he Caitipany is responsible for collection and seevicigy of this foan portfiolio on behall of investors/ buyees, In terms of the said securitization agreements,
the Company pays 1 investat/biyers an agreed dite basis the promia collection amuount as per individual ngreotnont s,

For the period For the period

Particula ended March 31, [ended March 31,
2025 2024

L. Mo of SPEs holiling assets for secuntization transactions ariginated by the degunaior 8] 4

2 Total amount of securitzed assets as per books o te SP1s 17.:421.38 5,62.86]

3. Tl amount ol expiosires tetained Ly the originator to comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet 1,726.70) 519.72

i} OFF Balanee sheet expogires

* Parst loss
* Others
b} On Balance sheer exposures
* Fient loss
* Others
A Auunt of exposines to securitiztion ransactions nilier than MR 93255 260.98
#) OFff Balance sheet oxposuces

1,726.70 519.72

1) Lixposure to own seeuritiziting
* it Jowd
* (hhers
i) Lsprsure to thied party secuntiznony
* ligrst liss
* Others
11} On Balance sheet expumures

1) Exposure to own secirilvations

* Lt Joss a3
* Dihers
) Expoisuce to thidd party secusitizatinns
* [rst loys
* Others = =
3 Salt: consideration recewed fur the seenntized assets and fzun/loss on sale on account 6f securtization 15,557.52] 4 ARB.50)
6 Foem and quantum (c ling vitlue) of seevices provided by way of, liguidity support, past-securitiztion assce ForvIcing, el ; -
7 Petlormuinee of ficiliy provided, Please provide separately for each facility viz, Credit_ enbancement, Tiquidity suppot, = -
servicing agpnt ete. Mention percent 1n bracker as of toml value of aility provided
() Aamonint paned
1) Repayment reconved -
(&) Outsimiding amount 2,659.25 780.70)
# Averpe default rate of portlulios observed n (e past. Please provide Teeakiup -
sepasarely lor cach asset eliws ve, RMIS, Vehicle Linans etc
2 Amonnt and nomber of adiditnnal /top up loan mven on same underlying asset.
Please preovide breakup sepaeately foe each asset class j.c. RMBS, Vehicle Loans etc
10 Tnvestor complunts (1) Divoetly/Tndiceetly receiver] and; (1) Complants
outstunding

13
i

il 260,08

(x) Information on instances of fraud:-

Nature of fraud (cash embezzlement by employee) For the year ended | the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of Cases = 1
At of Fraud - C 176
Recovery x
Asnount wlften off - 1.76
Nature of fraud (Borrower) For the year ended  |For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of Ciines 1
Amount of Fraud - 17512
Recoviry -
Amount written off - 17512

(xi) Details of single borrower limit exceeded by applicable NBFC:-
"The Company does not have single bortower exceeding the limits during the current period and previous period,
(xii) Details of financing of parent Company product:-
"The Company does not have such transaction during the curcent period and previous peciod,
(xiii) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:-
"The Company is registered with the ‘Ministey of Corporate Affaits’ (liinancial regulators as described by Ministry of Iinance).
(xiv) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI & other regulators:-
No penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators during the cureent period and previous period.

(xv) C ration of Ad g B and NPAs
Particulars As at March 31,2025 | A8 #tMarch 31,
2024
Concentrution of Advances
Latal advinees to twenty lagest bormowers 4,093.37 3,989.81
(M) af advances to wenty largest homowers to total advances 7.85%| 12.14%
Cong ion of Exy
Total exposure to mvanty fnrgest borrowers 4,093.37 3,089,81
(%) of expisure to wenty Lirpest borrowers to tutal CEpOsUe 7.85%)| 12.14%
| Concentration of NPAs
;l:n'tal expiostire to 1op four NPA accounts 53.02 32.70
) of éxposure to top four NPA accounts 0.10% 0.10%)
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(xvi) Movement of NPAs:-
For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, |ended March
2025 31, 2024
1) Net NPAs to net advance (%) 3.711% 3.26%
if) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 1,597.38 1,044.62
b) Addition during the year 2,237.14 967.30
) Reduction/ write off during the year 928.90) (414.54)
d Closing balance 2,905.62 1,597.38
iii) Movemeat of NPAs (Net)
a) Opening balance 1,050.99 605.65
b) Addition duting the year 1,411.51 669.56
¢) Reduction/ write off during the year (578.17) (224.22)
d) Closing balance 1,884.33 1,050.99
1v) Movemeunt of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions
on standard asscts)
a) Opening balance 546.40 438,97
b) Addition during the year 825.62 297.74
¢) Reduction/ write off during the year (350.73) (190.32)
d) Closing balance 1,021.29 546.40

(xvii)

(xviii)

Unsecured advances - refer note 7 of Balance Sheet Notes

Provisions & ¢

ies (shown under Bxpensies head in statement of profil & loss)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, |ended March

2025 31, 2024
Provision for standard and non performing assets 665.10 92.15
Provision for gratuity 25.97 (37.55)
Provision for compensation abscences (0.04) (20.43)
Other Provisions (1,001.54) 166.63

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

Un-hedged foreign currency

The Company does not have any foreign currency transaction during the current and previous period

Intra-group exposures:-
For the year For the year  |For the For the year
ended March 31, [ended March |year ended |cnded
Particulars 2025 (Customer) |31, 2024 March 31, |March 31,
(Customer) 2025 2024
(Borrower) |(Borrower)
a) T'otal amount of intra-group exposures 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,00
b) "V'otal amount of top 20 intra-group exposutes 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,00
©) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of
the Company on borrowers/customers 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Disclosure of stress assets as required under notification issued by RBI dated August 06, 2020, RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21
with notification issued by RBI dated and May 05, 2021, RB1/2021-22/31 DOR.STR.REC. 11/21.04.048/2021-22 (INR in Lakhs)

Type of A (B) © D) (E)
borrower Exposure to accounts Of (A), aggregate debt Of (A) amount Of (A) amount paid Exposure to
classified as Standard that slipped into NPA written off during by the borrowers accounts classified
consequent to during the half-year the half-year during the half-year as Standard
implementation of consequent to
resolution plan ~ Position implementation of
as at the end of the resolution plan
previous half-year (A) —Position as at the
end of this half-year
Personal
Loans
Corporate
persons™®
Of which,
MSMEs
Others - 138.50 7.09 28.54 302.76
MSMI
Total 338.52 7.22) - 28.54 302.76

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016,
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in X in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

(xxiv) Breaches in terms of covenants in respect of loans availed by the NBEC or debt securities issued by the NBFC including incidence/s of default.:-

‘There is no breach in terms of covenants in eéspect of loans availed or debt securities issued by the Company as on March 31,2025,

(xxv) Divergence in asset classification and provisioning above a certain threshold to be decided by the Reserve Bank:-
There iseno divergence in assct classification and provisioning to be reported as per RBI guidelines.

(xxvi) Sectokal Expoaure:-

For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Total Total

Exposure Percentage Exposure Percentage

(includes of Gross (includes of Gross

o on balance Gross NPAs 1o on balance Gross NPAs 10

sheet and NPAs total sheet and NPAs total
off-balance exposure in off-balance exposure in
sheet that eector sheet that sector
exposure) cxposure)

Agticulture and allied activities 6,728.80 808.09 1201% 6.768.04 550.53 8.22%
IMSME 0,696.41 468,29 6.99% 3,775.56 473.59 12.54%
Services 34,337.75 1,599.00 4.66% 17.830.22 496.97 2.79%
Corporate borrowers 4,129.32 [ 4,197.08 oo 0.00%
Others 261.61 30.23 11.56% 290.16 70.29 24.23%
Total 52,153.89 2,905.62 5.57% 32,861.06 1,597.38 4.86%

(xxvii) Customer compliinta-

For the year ended |For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 3t, 2024

a) Nuimber of complaints pending at the beginning of the ycarl

b} Mumber of complaint received during the yeae 16 2
) Number of complaints disposed during the year 27 32
d) Of which, number of complaints rejecied by the company -

0 MNumbet of camplaint pending at the end of the year (1)

Top five grounds of complaints received by the Company from customer

Grounds of complaints,

(i.c. complaints relating to) % increase/

Number of complaints Number of 4 ind
pending at the complaints ecrrs: 1;1 = Number of complaints [Of 5, number of
beginning of received :z‘)l::pl:i:ts received pending at the end of |complaints pending
the year during the . the year beyond 30 days
- over the previous
y year
1 2 3 4 5 6

For the year ended Murcli 31, 2025

Complaint w.r.t terms of loan
disbursement 11 IR0

Other Gomplainis 16 0%

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Complaint/¢nquiries w.r.t
terms of loan agreement 32 540%

QOther Complaints . 0%

(xxviii) Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year-

During the year, the Company’s various instruments were rated, the details of these ratings are as under:-

S. No. Particulars Amount Credit rating ) . ]
agency Current rating Previous rating
1 | ong-term fund-based bank facilitics 80.00 [ICRA Limited ICRA A- (Stable) ICRA A- (Stable)
2 Non Convertible Debentures 60.00 |ICRA Limited ICRA A- (Stable) ICRA A- (Stable)
3 Non Convertible Debentures 60.00 |ICRA Limited ICRA A- (Stable) NA
Sccuritization (Nimbus) ACUTTE A- (50)
4 4.01 |Acuite Ratings Ltd ~ |Reaffirmed ACUITE A- (8O)
Sccuritization (Admiral) CARE A- (50)
5 v 3.89 |CARE Ratings Ltd  |Reaffirmed CARL A- (8SO)

Securitization (quity Tranche)-Admiral . CARL BBB (8O)
6 048 |CARLE Ratings Ltd  |Reaffirmed CARI BB (SOY
ICRA A+(30)

Sccuritization (linsata)

7. 3.10 |ICRA Limited Reaffirmed [LCRAJA+HSO)Y
Securitization (Liquity Tranche)- Ensata ICABEBH(E0) .

8 048 [ICRA Limited Reaffirmed [ICRA[BBI+(S0)

. [CRA A (SO)

Securitizati Leconard

9 e 11.78 [ICRA Limited Reaffirmed JICRAJA (50)

10 Securitization (Butterfly) 16.90 [ICIRA Limircd 1CIA AA- (50) NA

11 [Secudtization (Buttcrfly) 1.88 |ICRA Limited ICRA A+ (SO) NA

12 Sccuritization (Bluestreak) 25.99 |[CRA Limited ICRA A (50) NA

13 Securitization (Yoda) 33.24 |ICRA Limited ICRA A (SO) NA
Securitization (Equity Tranche)- Yoda ICRA BBB+ (SO)

14 1.85 | ICRA Limited Reaffiemed NA

15 Sccuritization (Lunify) 32.69 [1011A Limitee ICRA A (SO) NA

ks, Securitization (Liquity "I'anche)-Lunify ICRA BBB+ (50)
16 1.82 [ICRA Limited Reaffirmed NA

*Mote: [l tltstanding amount is updated as per the reaffirmed mung,




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts in X in lakhs, unless stated othenvise)

(xxix)  Schiedule to Balance Sheet

o Asat Asat
ERtnn March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Amount Ouistinding Amaount Overdue
Linbilities Side
1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of i aocrued th but not paid:
(#) Debentures : Secured 8,974.09
: Unsecured

(bther than falling within the meaning of public deposits¥)
(12) Deferred Credits
(c) Teem Loans 3453434
(4]} Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
(&) Commercial Paper
() Public Deposits
(i} Chther Loans (Cash Credin)
2) Brealeup of (1)(f) above (O ling public deposits inclusive of interest acerued o but not paid):
(@) In the form of Unsecured ehentures
(b) Iti the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures whete there is a shortfall in the value of security
(€) Other public deposit
Asset Sitle © Amount Outstianding
3) Break-up of Louns and Ad including hills ivables [other than those included in (1) below]:
(@) Secured 49,1530
(b} Linsecured 3,000.43
4) Break up of Leased Assers and stock on hire and other assets counting ds usset fi ing activiti
(@) Lease assets including Jease rentals under sundry debtors
(D) Financial lease
(i) Openating lease
(b) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors
(1) Assets on hire
(i) Repossessed Assets
(c) Other loans counting towards asset financing activities
() Loans where assets have been repossessed
(1) Loany other thun (0) above
5) Breale-up of In
Current Investments
1) Quoted
1) Shares
(@) Equity
(b) Preference
1) Debentures and Bonds
iii) Units of mutual funds
iv) Government Securities
v) Others
b} Unquoted
1) Shares
() Equity
(b) Preference
ify Debentures and Bonds
iif) Units of mutual funds
iv) Government Securities
v) Others
Long Term investments
1) Quoted
1) Sttares
(@) Equity
(b) Preference
u) Debentures and Bonds
it1) Units of mutual funds
) Government Securities
v) Others
bj Unquoted
1) Shares
(a) Equity
(b) Preference
u) Debentures and Bonds
i) Units of mutual funds
) Government Securities
vy Cithers
6) Barrawer group-wise classification of assets finunced as in (3) and (4) above:

Category Amount net of provisions

Secured Unsecured Total

1) Related Parties
(1) Subsidiaries
(s Companies in the same group

{¢) Other related parties
\ 12) Other than related parties

Total




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts in X in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both

quoted and unguoted)

Category

Market Value / Break
up or fair value or
NAV

Book Value (Net of
Provisions)

1) Related Parties

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties

2) Other than related parties

B) Other infor

Do rd sl
Par

Amount

1) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related partics
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assclls
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related partics

(ii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

2,905.62

2,905.62
1,884.33

1,884.33




